HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 27, 2006
1:48 p. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:48:50 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Jim Hol m

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Carl Moses
Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Beth Kerttul a

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins; Josh Tenple, Staff, Senator Charlie
Huggi ns; Suzanne Hancock, Staff, Representative Gbrielle
LeDoux; Representative Bob Lynn; M ke Sica, Staff,
Representative Bob Lynn

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Erin Whipple, Kodiak; Christy Renfrew, Manager, Upper
Susitna Soil and Water Conservation District; Janice
Chum ey, Ni kiski, Central Peninsula Master Gardeners; Dani el
Col ang, President, Alaska Correctional Oficers Association;
Mae Barney, Correctional Oficer, Fairbanks; Hans Kl ausner,
Homer Soil and Water Conservation District; Al Poindexter,
Al aska Association of Conservation Districts; Sabrina
Fernandez, Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law
Susan Parks, Deputy Attorney Ceneral, Crimnal D vision,
Depar t ment of Law; Ed Fogel s, Deputy  Conm ssi oner,
Departnment of Natural Resources; Larry DeVilbiss, Director,
Division of Agriculture, Departnent of Natural Resources;
Jam e Snyder, University of Al aska Fairbanks

SUMVARY
CSSB 209 (JUD) "An Act relating to access by persons under

21 years of age to prenmises licensed to sell
al coholic beverages as clubs when alcoholic

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



beverages are not present and, when al coholic
beverages are present, to premses of a
patriotic organization licensed as a club if
the person possesses a valid active duty
mlitary or arnmed forces identification card
i ssued by the United States governnent."

CSSB 209 (JUD) was REPORTED out of Committee
with a "do pass” recommendation and with zero
fiscal note #1 by the Departnent of Mlitary
and Veterans Affairs, and with a new zero
fiscal note by the Departnment of Public
Saf ety.

HB 324 "An Act banning the inportation, transfer,
and cul tivation of orange hawkweed and purple
| oosestrife.™

HB 324 was heard and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

HB 343 "An Act relating to harassnent."

HB 343 was REPORTED out of Conmttee with a
"do pass" recommendation and with zero fiscal
note #1 by the Departnent of Corrections,
zero note #2 by the Departnent of Public
Safety, and with new zero fiscal notes by the
Departnment of Law, the Al aska Court System
and the Departnent of Adm nistration.

1: 48: 58 PM

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 209 (JUD)

"An Act relating to access by persons under 21 years of
age to premses licensed to sell alcoholic beverages as
cl ubs when alcoholic beverages are not present and,
when al coholic beverages are present, to prem ses of a
patriotic organization |licensed as a club if the person
possesses a valid active duty mlitary or arned forces
identification card issued by the United States
gover nnent . "

SENATOR CHARLI E HUGGE NS, sponsor, refreshed the commttee’s
menory of SB 209, which is about allowing young mlitary
peopl e into veterans’ clubs.

JOSH TEMPLE, STAFF, SENATOR CHARLI E HUGA NS, expl ai ned t hat
the bill is the same as HB 331, which was previously passed
out of the House Finance Conmitt ee.

1: 51: 11 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



Senat

or Huggi ns added that the bill has a no-cost factor.

Co- Chair Meyer reviewed the two zero fiscal notes.

Representative Kelly MWED to report CSSB 209 out of

Comm

ttee with i ndi vi dual recormendati ons and t he

acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

There being NO OBJECTIQON, it was so ordered.

CSSB
pass”
Depar
zero

1:53:

209 (JUD) was REPORTED out of Conmmittee with a "do

recormendation and with zero fiscal note #1 by the
tment of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs, and with a new
fiscal note by the Departnment of Public Safety.

49 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO. 324

"An  Act banning the inportation, transfer, and
cultivation of orange hawkweed and purple | oosestrife."

SUZANNE HANCOCK, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE GABRIELLE LEDOUX

r ead

t he sponsor statenent as foll ows:

For the record, | am Suzanne Hancock, staff to
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux. The Representative
t hanks the Chair and Conmttee for hearing this bill.
Representative LeDoux's intention with filing HB 324
was to respond to concerns from her constituents.
Scientists as well as gardeners are concerned about new
strains of noxious weeds that are taking hold in
Al aska. These invasive plants crowd out native plants
and cultivated plants and are devastating to the
envi ronment and peopl e’ s gardens.

Orange hawkweed and purple |oosestrife were chosen
because they have been the ones in the spotlight.
Purple |oosestrife is a threat to wetlands and
waterfow . In ny conmunity of Kodiak groups have been
pul l'ing up, bagging and disposing of orange hawkweed.
The State agency that has oversight in this area is the
Departnment of Natural Resources. The |anguage in this
bill has the Comm ssioner adopting regul ations
providing for the disposal of orange hawkweed and
purple loosestrife and plant parts to prevent the
further propagation of the species in the state.

Statute currently lists many noxi ous weeds but has not
kept up with new species, including these two. This
bill only applies to those who knowngly plant or
cultivate an orange hawkweed or purple |oosestrife
plant. This offense is a class A m sdeneanor but the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



intent is not to have weed police, but to educate the
public about the nenace these and other invasive
speci es present to our environment, agricultural crops,
streans, and gardens. As a legislator, Representative
LeDoux sponsors the bill because she considers it good
public policy. There will be nmenbers of the scientific
comunity, gardeners and others testifying in their
areas of expertise.

1:56: 47 PM

Co- Chair Meyer asked why only two plants are targeted when,
in fact, there are twenty invasive species on the list. M.
Hancock expl ained that there exists a list of plants already
on the books. She shared the benefits of proactive action
in response to these new invadi ng pl ants.

1: 58: 13 PM

ERIN WH PPLE, KODI AK, spoke in favor of HB 324 because of
t he danger invasive plants pose. They don’t provide any
benefit to wildlife or bird species, which is a factor under
consideration. Alaska is in the position of being able to
prevent problenms caused by invasive plants. She encouraged
passage of the bill.

2: 00: 36 PM

CHRI STY RENFREW MANAGER, UPPER SUSITNA SO L AND WATER
CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CT, spoke of her experience with the
spreading of Orange Hawkweed and efforts to prevent its
continued invasion. She encouraged passage of the bill.

Representative Hol masked if Orange Hawkweed is north of the
range. M. Renfrew said she does not know. Representative
Hol m shared that he has no know edge of the weed existing in
t hat area. Ms. Renfrew shared characteristics of the weed
and problens with eradication.

Representative Holm asked which herbicides would kill it.
Ms. Renfrew said Transline and M estone, which does not
i npact wet !l ands.

2:06: 17 PM

JANI CE CHUMLEY, NI KI SKI, CENTRAL PENI NSULA MASTER GARDENERS,
rel ated how aggressive and invasive Oange Hawkweed and
Purple | oosestrife are. She spoke of the dangers of using
herbicides and the need to prevent inportation of these
weeds. She testified in support of the bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



AL PO NDEXTER, ALASKA ASSOCI ATI ON OF CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CTS,
related his prograns’ efforts to prevent the spread of many
noxi ous weeds. He testified in support of the bill.

Representative Hol m asked about tansy and the need to ban
t he possession of herbs. M. Poindexter agreed that tansy
is not as invasive, but he enphasized the need to ban non-
nati ve weeds from | ocal areas. He maintained it is a good
first step.

2:12:32 PM

Representative Hol m voi ced concern about a statew de policy
addressing a regional problem M. Poi ndexter suggested
that the problem is statew de. Representati ve Hol m asked

how to get rid of Orange Hawkweed. M. Poindexter related
that the areas are quite small now, but later may require
her bi ci des. Representative Hol m suggested that the path the

bill is taking is not sustainable. Some weeds will not be a
probl em st at ew de. He questioned if the policy should be
the sane statew de. M. Poindexter responded that the

policy should apply where the plants show up. He posed a
potential problemw th gardeners sharing plants.

2:18: 19 PM

HANS KLAUSNER, HOMVER SO L AND WATER CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CT,
testified in support of HB 324. He enphasized that the
bill’s strength is in prevention. He suggested possibly
adding nore plants to the list of noxious weeds.

Representative Hol minquired about fireweed and dandeli ons,
and how they fit the definition of noxious weeds. M.
Kl ausner defined weeds as those that inpact native habitats.

2:23: 29 PM

JAM E SNYDER, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS, addressed the
history of Purple Loosestrife in Al aska. She described the
nature of the plant and its invasive potential. She
suggested that sone plants are nore of a problemthan others
and that Alaska should focus on prevention. She spoke in
support of the bill.

Representative Stoltze shared that in Montana, Mapweed is an

i ssue. Ms. Snyder explained that a small patch has been
di scovered in Alaska with the potential to be a problem
Al aska can | earn from ot her st ates’ pr obl ens.

Representative Stoltze noted that |imted use of pesticides
added to the problem Ms. Snyder nmmde several suggestions
for prevention and educati on.

2: 30: 59 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



Representative Holm asked if M. Synder is wth the
Cooperative Extension Service. She replied that she is and
t hat she works out of Anchorage. Representative Hol m asked
if her programis involved with eradication of weeds. She
replied that is not, but the mssion is to provide
information on integrated pest nmanagenent. He asked how her
program i s funded. Ms. Snyder explained the nature of her
job and related that invasive plants are only part of the
pr ogram There is no eradication program wthin the
Cooper ati ve Extensi on Agency.

Representative Holm posed a hypothetical problem and asked

if it was worthy of a Cass A m sdeneanor. Ms. Snyder
referred to the bill as a stopgap neasure. Representati ve
Hol m suggested that cultivating these plants would result in
unfair punishnent. Ms. Snyder suggested that the nodel
devel oped in other states regarding the banning of Purple
Loosestrife should be used. Representative Holm asked if

her organization maps where these weeds currently exist.
She replied that they catal ogue the areas, but there is only

one area where Purple Loosestrife exists. Representative
Hol m asked if that area was destroyed. Ms. Snyder said it
was, but a lot of seedlings remain. There is a need to

increase public awareness to deal wth new sightings.
Representative Hol mnoted there is no fiscal note to address
public education. He suggested that there should be one.

2:38:31 PM

Representative Stoltze asked if the list should include nore
pl ant s. He wondered about the fiscal note and a need for
resear ch.

LARRY  DEVI LBI SS, DI RECTOR, DVISION OF AGRI CULTURE

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES, explained that his agency
is in the process of adding these two plants to the list of
prohi bitive plants through the regulatory process. There is
a need to update the prohibitive weed |ist and regul ati ons.

Addressing the fiscal note question, M. DeVilbiss said the
assunption was that there would be no new staff added. That
woul d change if the departnent were to becone responsible
for disposing of the weeds. He suggested that regulation

rather than statute, is a better way to handle the problem
of invasive plants.

Representative Stoltze asked if the Forget-Me-Not is a weed.
Representative Holm explained if a plant naturalizes in an
area, it could be ternmed a weed. He spoke of the problens
and expenses related to dandelions. He disagreed with the
harsh puni shments in the bill.

2:44: 38 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



Representati ve Weyhrauch suggested this issue be dealt with
by regulation. M. DeVilbiss agreed that there is already a
regul atory process in place.

Representative Wyhrauch questioned “Meadow in a Can”
legality. M. DeVil biss responded that the mgjor inporter
woul d know it is prohibited and it could be nonitored at the

bor der. Representative Holm asked if this could be taken
care of on a regional basis. M. DeVilbiss replied that it
is not set up that way, but it could be. Representati ve
Hol m suggested that they do it. M. DeVilbiss said they are
reviewing it. Representative Hol m enphasized that it would
make nore sense to regul ate by region.

2:48: 48 PM

Representative Hawker summarized the bill as crimnalizing

human activity regarding two plant species. He wondered if
that conpared to the Suprenme Court ruling, which states that
human activity regarding marijuana plants couldn’'t be
crimnalized. He questioned those inplications.

SABRI NA FERNANDEZ, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW shared an opinion that existing regulations concerning
the noxious weed list do currently have the sane penalty
attached as the proposed | egislation. Representative Hawker
spoke of a constitutional challenge to existing statute
regarding plant species. He asked if the two proposed
speci es have any nedi ci nal val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELL LEDOUX sai d she did not know of any.

ED FOGELS, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL
RESOURCES, responded that the bill mght not be necessary
because it is dealt with by regul ation.

Representative Kelly suggested that Representative Hol m and
Representative LeDoux neet in his office to discuss the bil
further.

HB 324 was heard and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

2:53: 52 PM

HOUSE BI LL NO._ 343

"An Act relating to harassnent.”

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN related that correctional officers
and first responders who want nore protection from attacks
with bodily fluids requested the bill. He shared a personal
experience working in a jail environnent. He related that
attacks with bodily fluids have been increasing, as has the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



danger of infections. Currently, throwing bodily fluids at
anyone can only be charged as a class B m sdeneanor. This
bill changes that to a class A msdeneanor, with jail tine
fromzero days to one year. It also provides a mninumterm
of inprisonnment of 60 days for persons convicted of
harassnment in the first degree when they direct the offense
at certain specified |aw enforcenent officers and energency
responders. He noted correspondence included in nenbers’
packets and quoted several exanples.

2:58:42 PM

DANI EL  COLANG, PRESI DENT, @ ALASKA CORRECTI ONAL OFFI CERS
ASSCCI ATION, related his experience behind correctional
facility walls. He stressed that assault wth bodily fluids
has becone preval ent. He encouraged support of this bill.

Representative Stoltze asked if saliva is still prohibited.
Representative Lynn said it is.

3:03: 25 PM

MAE BARNEY, CORRECTIONAL OFFICER, FAIRBANKS, shared her
experience with assault by bodily fluids. She testified in
support of the bill.

3:07:32 PM

Representative Wyhrauch asked if this law applies to a
situation where a nenber of PETA would throw blood at a
person wearing fur.

M KE SICA, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BOB LYNN, clarified that
the law would apply to everyone, not just correctional
of ficers. He referred to page 2, Section 2, harassnent in

the first degree, to explain. Representati ve Wyhrauch
restated his question to ask if the law would apply to
everyone. M. Sica responded that the nmandatory m ninmum

prison term of 60 days only applies to assaults against
peace officers, nedical first responders or professionals.

3:10:35 PM

SUSAN PARKS, DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL, CRIM NAL D VI SION,
DEPARTMENT OF LAW clarified that the crine would apply to
anyone who is assaulted by bodily fluids — teacher, citizen,
babysitter, and the crimnal could be prosecuted under this
new statute, harassnment in the first degree.

Representati ve Weyhrauch asked for clarification between the
di fferent kinds of sentencing. Ms. Parks referred to page
3, Section 4, to highlight the sentencing provision for
crimes agai nst peace officers and nedi cal personnel.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



Co- Chair Chenault asked how many bodily fluid assault cases

there are a year. Ms. Parks responded that there are
probably nore cases than what are prosecuted, which are only
a handful. They are a comon occurrence and are often

handl ed adm nistratively in jail wth a |oss of privileges.
They are currently a m sdeneanor

M. Colang, in response to Co-Chair Chenault’s question,
could not recall any statistics regarding this. He cited
Fai rbanks as an exanple, where there was an incident |ast
nmonth. Co-Chair Chenault opined that it should be reported
every tine.

3:15: 08 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked how many cases there would be per
year. He mentioned that there could be |legal costs involved
with this type of case. He suggested researching up-front
costs.

3:16: 26 PM

Ms. Parks commented on the fiscal notes. She indicated that
currently there are only a few cases. She added that the

nunbers could increase. She speculated that the thirteen
offices could absorb the normal workl oad. She suggested
that the bill mght have a deterrent effect and the costs

coul d decrease.

3:18:10 PM

Representative Foster renmenbered being accosted by a
| obbyi st who “spit in his face”.

Represent ati ve Hawker pointed out that the bill would create
a crime of degrees. He wondered if the bill could nmake
cl ass A conduct elevate to class B conduct.

Co-Chair Meyer responded that sone threats fall under a

different statute. Ms. Parks added that there are other
statutes that elevate the conduct by the degree and by the
nature of the conduct. She commented that it would be a
policy call for the Legislature to make. She thought the
subject matter of this bill is of a higher nature.

3:22:14 PM

Representative Hawker asked if the act were sufficiently
t hreateni ng, would the new category of a class A m sdeneanor
be high enough for the crine. Ms. Parks replied that the
| egi slature could make that ‘call’. The thought was that it
did not fit into class C conduct. It should be a
determ nati on nade by the Legislature.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



3:23:49 PM

Representative Stoltze asked if the Departnent of
Corrections made the decision not to conme to the table to
participate in the discussion. M. Sica took responsibility
for not followwng up with the Departnent. He did not want
that to be interpreted that they do not support the
| egi sl ati on.

3:25: 07 PM

Co-Chair Chenault MOED to REPORT CSHB 343 (JUD) wth
i ndi vi dual recomendations and the attached fiscal notes.
He voiced concern about the fiscal notes attached to the
bill. He requested nore accurate fiscal notes.

Representative Stoltz OBJECTED for the purpose of
di scussi on.

Representative Kelly pointed out that several states have
elevated this crine to a felony. He reiterated how
of fensive the crine is.

Representative Hol m added that the class A m sdeneanor for
this crime was the same as it was for transporting noxious
weeds.

Co- Chair Meyer noted the four new fiscal notes.
Representative Joule, referring to discipline admnistered
in jails, commented that, “good tinme gets taken away”. He
t hought that adding tinme to a jail sentence would qualify as
needi ng a fiscal note.

3:29:18 PM

Representative Stoltze W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON
There being NO further OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

HB 343 was REPORTED out of Commttee with a "do pass”
recommendation and wth zero fiscal note # 1 by the
Departnment of Corrections, zero note #2 by the Departnent of
Public Safety, and wth new zero fiscal notes by the
Departnment of Law, the Alaska Court System and the
Depart ment of Adm nistration.

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:29 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/27/06 1:48 P. M



